DDA Minutes – March 21, 2019
Minutes of the Downtown Development Authority 
City of Portland
	Held on Thursday, March 21, 2019
In Council Chambers at City Hall

Members Present:  Grimminck, VanSlambrouck, Briggs, Pung, Madarang

Members Absent: Gorman, Barnes, Antaya

Staff:  DDA/Main Street Director ConnerWellman; City Clerk Miller; Tammy Meyers; Parks, Recreation & Cemetery Director Brown

Guests:  Jon Moxey of Fleis & VandenBrink

Chair Grimminck called the meeting to order at 3:32 P.M. 

There was no public comment.

Motion by VanSlambrouck, supported by Briggs, to approve the agenda as presented.
All in favor. Adopted.

Motion by Madarang, supported by VanSlambrouck, to approve the minutes of the February 21, 2019 DDA meeting as presented.
All in favor. Adopted.

Motion by Briggs, supported by Madarang, to approve the Treasurer’s Report as presented.
All in favor. Adopted.

Under Team Reports, nothing new to report for the Organization & Finance Team.

Chair Grimminck reported that the business workshops hosted by the Business Enhancement Team have been moving along nicely, the next workshop will be held in May.

Member VanSlambrouck stated that she was unable to attend the Promotions & Marketing Team meeting; nothing new to report.

Under the Design Team Report, Member Briggs noted that they are waiting to hear back from the Michigan Historic Commission in terms of the appropriate language for the historic sign.

Director ConnerWellman noted some businesses that may be interested in Façade Grants.

Under Old Business, Director ConnerWellman stated that at its meeting on Monday, March 18, 2019 the City Council approved the resubmission of a MDNR MNRTF Grant Application for improvements to William Toan Park. Improvements would include the addition of a splash pad.

Jon Moxey of Fleis & VandenBrink presented the proposed conceptual design for improvements to Will Toan Park.

Member Pung asked several questions of Mr. Moxey including where Portland ranked poorly on the previous application that was submitted? 


Mr. Moxey stated that the median household income of the area and previous grant funding received by the City are uncontrollable criteria that Portland was marked down for. He noted that taking the restroom improvements out of the application should also help the ranking.

Member Pung also stated that sustainability and green elements are typically a higher priority and she did not see a lot of this on the proposed plan. She inquired if the hard surfaces will be permeable or typical concrete.

Mr. Moxey stated that they can be permeable surfaces and points are awarded for using native species. He further noted that is why the “green shoreline” is included.

Member Pung asked who is compiling the application material; this project has not been on the DDA’s radar until very recently.

Mr. Moxey stated Parks and Recreation Director Neil Brown is instrumental in the process along with Fleis & VandenBrink landscape architecture staff, taking the lead from City of Portland staff.

Member Pung asked what the grant amount request is.

Mr. Moxey explained that the request is for $300,000 with a 50/50 match from the MDNR if the application is approved.

Member Pung asked what the typical size of a splash is? How does this compare?

Mr. Moxey stated that splash pads come in all different sizes; from quite small to very large.

Member Pung asked what improvements to the pavilion would entail?

Mr. Moxey stated one of the most substantial improvements would be to cover the 4x4 posts with something more substantial.

Member VanSlambrouck read the below from a statement she had prepared.

As I’ve had time to contemplate this project since the 1st grant was applied for I’ve changed my point of view on a few things.

One of my concerns all along has been that while the idea of a splash pad is nice, shouldn’t our priority be addressing the downtown infrastructure, street, sidewalks and buildings first and foremost. Our downtown needs significant attention.

When your home roof and plumbing are in disrepair, you don’t build a pool in your back yard. I’m not sure at this time it’s the best use of those funds.

I also don’t believe Toan Park has the greatest need for improvement nor is it the optimal place for a splash pad in the community. Bogue flats (which is also in the DDA district according to the TIF plan) has the greatest need. IMO Bogue Flats sees more residents and visitors alike than Toan park.  Have you seen bathrooms at Bogue Flats? They are in terrible condition. IMO This level of disrepair does not reflect well on our community.  This is the more urgent need. 

My apologies for bringing these concerns up now. I was unaware that we had decided to reapply for this grant so quickly nor did I know that any new plans were being drawn up by engineers to address the new concerns regarding flooding. Only when they were posted on social media did I see the scaled back version. Which leads me to this question, since the project has been scaled back has our proposed financial obligation also been scaled back?

Mr. Moxey stated this project is viewed as a “yes... and…”; agreeing that downtown infrastructure is also important. He stated that Kent St. streetscape improvements are a part of the TIF Plan. City Staff does not expect the proposed improvements to Toan Park to have an impact on improvements to Kent St. City Council has approved moving Kent St. ahead of Grand River Ave. in terms of the project priority list for Federal funding. The Kent St. Improvement Project is not expected to be happen until 2022/2023. The desire for a splash pad has shown up as a desire of the community in both the TIF Plan and the Parks & Recreation Master Plan.

Member VanSlambrouck stated that she does not feel that Toan Park has the greatest need for improvement. She feels that Bogue Flats is in greater need of improvement.

Director ConnerWellman noted the email from City Manager Gorman included in the packet that states the position of the City.

Director ConnerWellman stated that Toan Park is the most connected to downtown economic vitality, that is why it was chosen over Bogue Flats. Both the TIF Plan process in 2014 and the Parks & Recreation Plan process in 2017 outlined the desire for a splash pad. She further stated that improvements to Will Toan Park will not derail or change the infrastructure improvements to Kent St. The improvements to Kent St. are much more involved than the streetscape improvements outlined in the TIF Plan.

Member VanSlambrouck asked how the condition of the buildings in the downtown will be addressed.

Director ConnerWellman stated that is not up to the DDA as the buildings are privately owned.

Member VanSlambrouck stated that the City just spent $500,000 to put in a road for Sparrow Hospital.

Director ConnerWellman stated that property is not in the DDA.

Member VanSlambrouck stated that if the City can spend money for Sparrow then why can’t they spend money for the disrepair of buildings.

Director ConnerWellman stated that the DDA offers grants to businesses to incentivize improvements but business owners are repeatedly reluctant to spend the extra money to meet the historical requirements. The DDA will continue to educate, offer and push what it has to offer but ultimately can’t control the business owners’ decisions. She further stated that she is thankful the City Council has redirected the funding priority from Grand River Ave. to Kent St.; they are the ones that will have to answer to the residents and business owners in that area.

Member Pung asked if the budget item for the proposed Toan Park Improvements is $300,000?

Director ConnerWellman stated that it is.

Member Pung stated that this entire process has been clunky. She further stated that she has been a part of recent budget discussions and this project hasn’t been brought up at all. She feels that it is shameful that it has not been part of the process until a vote is being taken. The DDA has not been engaged until late in the game; after the fact.

Director ConnerWellman stated that it is not being voted on as it was considered and approved last year.

Member Pung stated that the proposed project is different.

Chair Grimminck inquired that as the project was approved last year, how much has already been set aside for it?

Director ConnerWellman stated the initial projection was that $112,000 would be set aside at the end of Fiscal Year 2018/2019, it now looks as if there will be $200,000. She expects that at the end of Fiscal Year 2019/2020 there will be another $100,000.

Chair Grimminck confirmed that the potential improvements to Will Toan Park would be paid for in 2-years.

[bookmark: _GoBack]Chair Grimminck stated that she is in favor of the splash pad and a lot of people in the community want this project. She further stated her feeling that the DDA does not have a great reputation and this would be a very visible, affordable project that would benefit everyone, not just two blocks of Kent St. She stated her feeling that it would be a good investment.

Director ConnerWellman stated that this is an opportunity to transform Portland’s downtown, similar to what Rockford has done.

Mr. Moxey explained that investment in developing Hyland Dr. for the Sparrow development does not tie into the DDA spending situation. The $500,000 investment into the road was recouped by the sale of the property. It was a needed investment in order to make the rest of the property marketable.

Mr. Moxey also noted that other parks were considered for the location of the splash pad but the consensus was that the downtown is really where you want to draw people in order to bring further investment.

Member Pung noted that she is disappointed with how this process happened. She stated her feeling that it is unfair as the DDA is the sole funding source for the proposed Will Toan Project, this is a new project with a new application to be submitted. She stated that infrastructure and streetscape value to support business growth has a much greater benefit than a couple of blocks. It brings new jobs, tax base which drives up incremental value that supports projects like the Hyland Dr. investment. To Mr. Moxey’s point in regard to the Hyland Dr. investment for the further development of the property, that is the same investment as is needed in the downtown. She stated that she was a no vote last year and still feels the same. Although she loves parks, she stated her feeling that the proposed project is “putting the cart before the horse”. There are millions of dollars of investments needed in the downtown and the 15-20% that could be reallocated from the Will Toan Park project is nothing to sneeze at when interest will have to be paid on whatever funds are bonded for the future Kent St. project.

There was continued discussion regarding the proposed design for Will Toan Park in addition to how it could be scaled if a future application were to be submitted.

There was discussion.

Director ConnerWellman presented the Fiscal Year 2019/2020 budget request.

Member Pung asked about changes it looks like were made to the budget although the date at the top is not changed.

Director ConnerWellman explained that the employment was excluded in the previous version of the budget. When it was recalculated, they realized the mistake.

There was discussion.

Motion by Madarang, supported by Briggs, to recommend the Fiscal Year 2019/2020 budget to Council for approval.

There was no discussion.

All in favor. Adopted.

Under New Business, Chair Grimminck appointed Becky Ward to the Design & Business Team.

Motion by Pung, supported by Madarang, to add City Treasurer/Finance Director Melinda Tolan to the Portland Prime Account at Independent Bank.
All in favor. Adopted.

[bookmark: _Hlk531876540]Under the Director Report, Director ConnerWellman presented her report on downtown activities and provided an update on the downtown businesses that were affected by the ice jam and flooding. Director Conner Wellman also provided information on National AmeriCorps Week and what VISTA volunteer Dana Hengesbach has been doing in the City of Portland. Director ConnerWellman provided updates on business and property in the DDA District along with other projects and recent activities.
Next week, VISTA volunteer Dana Hengesbach and City Council Member Mandy Johnston will attend the National Main Street Conference in Seattle, Washington.

Director ConnerWellman noted sponsorship opportunities for the 150 celebration.

Under Board Member Comments, Member Pung noted that the Michigan Main Street along with the Small Business Development Center have partnered to support small businesses. She further inquired if any local businesses are taking part in this program.

Director ConnerWellman explained that the program was offered as a PILOT program where they initially chose eight communities to work with. They pared the eight down to two communities, Portland was not one of those. There were six local businesses interested in participating. 

Member Pung stated that this is a great opportunity that looks like it has fully launched.

Director ConnerWellman noted that on the last conference call with Michigan Main Street that they want it to look like they have fully launched and would like information to be gathered again. She is working with businesses. Her understanding is that although they are “fully launched” it does not mean they will work with any community. She also learned that you can be a Main Street Community to participate but you also have to participate with Redevelopment Ready Communities (RRC) to be eligible for the program. At this time, the City Council has decided it is not interested in participating with RRC. The other part of this program is that you can be an RRC community but you don’t have to be a Main Street Community.

Member Pung noted that is really important that they receive these updates. She has heard great feedback and testimonials from other communities that have had success with RRC.

Member Briggs noted that the business workshop held today was excellent.

Motion by Madarang, supported by Briggs, to adjourn the meeting at 4:38 P.M.
All in favor.  Adopted

Respectfully submitted,

______________________
Margery Briggs, Secretary
3 | Page

